© O

MINUTES OF THE
MEETING OF THE SENATE COMMITTEE
ON JUDICIARY

SIXTY-FIRST SESSION
NEVADA STATE LEGISLATURE
April 24, 1981

The Senate Committee on Judiciary was called to order by
Chairman Melvin D. Close at 8:10 a.m., Friday, April 24,
1981, in Room 213 of the Legislative Building, Carson City,
Nevada. Exhibit A is the Meeting Agenda. Exhibit B is the
Attendance Roster.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT:

Senator Melvin D. Close, Chairman
Senator Keith Ashworth, Vice Chairman
Senator Don W. Ashworth

Senator Jean E. Ford

Senator William J. Raggio

Senator William H. Hernstadt

Senator Sue Wagner

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT:

Sally Boyes, Committee Secretary

SENATE BILL NO. 535:

Prohibits unauthorized interception of coded television signals.

Mr. Harry Reid stated this bill was reviewed with experts on
communication in Washington.. Some proposed amendments were drafted.
See Exhibit C. Mr. Reid introduced sevéral people in the

audience that were supporting Mr. Reid in his- testimony. See
Exhibit A. ’

Mr. Ed Joyce stated this bill was critical to the television
company represented at the hearing. The biggest problem of the
industry has been the interception of the signal illegally by tser
pirates and sellers. This industry is made up of many eliments.




O @

Senate Committee on Judiciary
April 24, 1981

The system works through a process of transmitting programming
through a satellite; the program is picked up from the satellite
for a fee; then a signal is transmitted to an FCC licensed carrier
who inturn transmits that signal from Black Mountain to the sub-
scribers.

This industry employes hundreds of thousands of people all over
the country, many of those in Las Vegas. The only way the
industry will survive is to have protection; the property right
must have protection to charge a reasonably fair fee for the
services performed. Home Box Office has invested millions of
dollars in equipment and programming in order to send the signal
to the satellite. 1In order for the company to establish an
operation, hire a staff and be in the position to offer a service,
the investment has been over $700,000.00. That investment is

in Las Vegas, Nevada. To develop this business an additonal
investment was required of over $900,000.00. Last year over
$800,000 was spent to purchase programming and make that pProgramming
available to the customers. 1In additon to the cost of the
programming, an additional one million three hundred thousand
dollars was spent to deliver that programming to the various
customers. There was approximately two million dollars spent
last year; over one and a half million was spent in Nevada and
was paid to the citizens of Nevada in order for the service to

be performed. |

" Senator Wagner asked if this service was connected with television
prompter. Mr. Joyce stated the same principal applies. Senator
Wagner asked if the amount of money stated above was directed to
the community of Las Vegas primarily. Mr. Joyce stated this was
the cost of a company like his to be in a position to sell sub-
cription television. This money was related to the southern

area of the state. He stated sister companies around the state
would be spending like sums which would benefit more people of

the state. )

Chairman Close asked if the signal that came from the satellite
was a scramble signal. Mr. Joyce stated it was not. Chairman
Close asked if the amendment being proposed covered the earth
stations situation. Mr. Joyce stated@ no. Chairman Close stated
he felt the way it was worded, the amendment-probably did cover
that situation and asked why hé would be going on to other than .
his own industry. Mr. Joyce stated the amendment was meant to
preclude the illegal interception of the signal. When a program
is put on the satellite, those people handling it are happy to
sell it to anyone willing to buy it. Chairman Close asked what

2. a &y
(3




O - O

Senate Committee on Judiciary
April 24. 1981

‘would happen if a person had their own dish. Mr. Joyce stated
he was not too familar with the earth station owners and the
programmers. He felt the programmers had direct relationships
with earth station owners. He stated his concern was with the
illegal interception of the signal; should the illegal inter-
ception of the signal be made law, then the earth station owner
would be affected. Chairman Close stated the bill as it was
being amended was more broad; the bill originally referred to
an attachment on a television receiver. Senator Raggio asked
for an explanation of the amendment that was being proposed.

Mr. Joyce stated he asked experts in the field of communications
whether they thought the bill as proposed would, in their
opinion, be interpreted by the Judiciary Committee in the way
that would prevent the unauthorized interception of microwave
signals. It was their opinion, because of the body of law that
was being developed in the various state courts, the language
would have to be more specific. Otherwise, the intention of the
bill as stated could cause a battle of experts as to the meaning of
the language and its interpretation should a court case happen.
The expert opinion was the bill should be changed s> the intended
benefit would come from it.

Senator Hernstadt stated the letter of referrence from his

personal involment in communications would clear up the language
problem involved. See Exhibit D. He stated he felt the original
bill was effective but felt the amendment should have a stipulation
in regard to the completed devises that permit interception as

well as the kits that are available for that same purpose.

Senator Wagner asked what a kit was. Senator Hernstadt stated that
is a component that is assembled in pieces that included clear

cut instructions on the assembly of the kit for interception.
Senator Don Ashworth asked if that was in regard to the sale of
those type of interception devices. Senator Hernstadt stated yes.
Mr. Joyce stated the programmers that offer satellite programs
charge a small fee for that programming; a person having a dish

would not have difficulty entering into a legal relationship to pick

-up that programming. The problem that is faced is when someone
does not enter into a relationship with the people that provide

the programming, a contribution does not come from the person

to help in the cost of providing that service. After the first
year of operation, the company lost $208,000.00. Last year an
additional two million dollars was spent and the company broke even.
Our estimate is should the pirate users of the signal pay for the
service, an additional one million dollars would come from the




o | O

Senate Committee on Judiciary
April 24, 1981

revenue. As a result of that, a profit would be received and
subscription rates could be lowered so the 13,500 customers

"who are paying for the service could have the same service for
less money. He stated the company felt the rate was too high;

it cannot be lowered because the company is not making money now.
There is no revenue derived from the pirate users. Senator
Raggio asked how the measure was made on pirate users. Mr. Joyce’
stated that has been done through costly litigation being con-
ducted in Las Vegas to prevent the wholesalers and retailers

from selling out of trunks the kits required to intercept the
signal. Lists have been obtained of purchasers. We have also
been visually viewing houses that have the equipment on roofs.
Senator Raggio how many people were not paying for this service.
Mr. Joyce stated it was over 4,000. Senator Don Ashworth asked how
this would be enforced; was the concern more for stopping the sale.
Mr. Joynce stated if the sale could be stopped, it would prevent
other people from becoming pirate users. He stated it would be
more fair for the legal users of the service if those pirate
users were forced to stop using the equipment, could not buy the
equipment and those that already had the equipment would either
become subscribers or turn the equipment back and not have the
service. Senator Don Ashworth stated the question of proof would
still be involved; even though equipment is on the roof, use
still has to be proved. Mr. Joyce stated two suits have been
filed; his company has filed one so far. The case is pending so
the outcome of it is still unknown. Mr. Harry Reid stated the
case that was choosen to file suit against equipment was ident-
ified as not being that of the company, it could not be used for
anything else, it was pointed toward Black Mountain, pictures have
been taken, people have been in the homes and the converter was
on the television set; in those cases, pirate use will be proven.
He stated the cost involved and the amount of time spent in
proving this action was not worth the cost of a subscriber; but
it will set an example.

Senator Wagner stated there are people who pay for the subscription
to teleprompter and still receive the benefit of Home Box Office.
She said she understood this was done on the telephone pole and
would not visuablly show on a house. How would a situation like
this be handled. Mr. Joyce stated that situation is a cable hook
up as opposed to the hook up that is used in his company. He felt
that was also unfair to splice into a cable hook up and have the
benefits from that service without the revenue benefit to the
company involved. Senator Hernstadt stated this bill, as it is
written, covers not only illegal reception but also the unscrambler
device people also use.

. .
\3e




® o

Senate Committee on Judiciary
April 24, 1981

Mr. Harry Reid stated he .felt the language tele-communication
was important in this bill and that legzslatlon should be
clarified so that people realize the problem is a misdemeanor
and a cilvil action could be started against them.

Senator Wagner stated the bill should be de51gned to have the
protection at the point of sale.

Senator Raggio asked what authority had to be given in order to

get into this business. Mr. Joyce stated there was no federal
authority involved; transmlttlng is done through a FCC licensed
company and a relationship is established with that company. That
company is selling some time to this company. Senator Raggio asked
if there was a federal statute regarding this process or if this
bill was the only one governing this operation. Mr. Reid stated
there was a federal statute, but it did.not apply to this situation.
Mr. Reid stated it was a radio wave that was used in this system;
even though the existing law used the term micro-wave and it

was possible this system was protedted by that law, there is

still the possibility that it would not be in a court of law.

Senator Wagner asked how many of these kits were manufactured
with in the state of Nevada. Mr. Joyce stated to his knowledge
there were none. He stated they were comlng from Arizona and
Florida. Mr. Reid stated the feellng is now there may be a
location in North Las Vegas that is also manufacturing the kits.

Mr. Darold Roy, citizen, stated his concern was in regard to the
earth stations. Senator Raggio asked how much an earth station
cost. Mr. Roy stated $3,500 if a person builds the unit himself,
and they can go as high as $12,000. He stated they are being
sold in Reno in three locations. He felt the way the bill was
worded it would also affect the people with earth stations.

Mr. Mark Penner, c1tlzen, stated the FCC has regulations on
transmission on public airways, but nothing on cables. There is
no federal agency that controls the public airways. There are
three stations that operate off the satellite, 24 carrier signals
and time is leased from the satellite to carry the signal to earth;
it is then retransmitted to be received by the subscriber of the
program. He asked if violation of the law would be involved if
that signal is received and a station that retransmitts that
s;gnal also receives it. Public airways means the public can
receive that signal, otherwise that signal should be transmitted
in another direction. Senator Hernstadt stated this bill referred

[’ oy




Senate Committee on Judiciary
April 24, 1981

to the interception of a signal not to public airways. He
stated earth station dishes could be handled with an amendment
because they can receive the signal directly.

ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 232: (Exhubit £)

Clarifies age of and eliminated c1t12ensh1p requirement for
directors of corporations.

Senator Don Ashworth moved to amend and do pass
SQB- 232.

Senator Wagner seconded the motion.
The motion carried. (Senators Ford, Keith Ashworth

and Hernstadt were absent for the vote.)

SENATE BILL NO. 527:

Makes various changes to the laws regulating gaming.

Ms Patty Becker, Deputy Attorney General, stated page five, lien
debtor would mean whoever had the license in the gaming establish-

'ment, an attachment would be made on whatever real property they

had in the state of Nevada. This would insure when an extablish-
ment went out of business and were no longer in the gaming
industry, that did not effect the 'lien. It would have to be
determined that the entity owed the state of Nevada money; a

lien would be filed and real property would be attached in the
state of Nevada.

Chairman Close asked if there were a corporate gaming licensee
and there were another name on that license, would that other
person also be responsible for the gaming tax. Ms Becker
stated only if the corporate bail could be pierced.

Senator Don Ashworth stated anyone that could sign a check for
that corporation and has their name on the aecount would be
liable for that tax. Chairman Close stated anyone that could
direct the money for the payment of taxes would be liable for
that tax.

Ms Becker stated the rest of the section on page eight involved
technical changes. Section 24 deletes the language of having

the approval of the attorney general for outside consultants, the
board of examiners contract approval would remain.

6. v;;b




O O

Senate Committee on Judiciary
April 24, 1981

Senator Raggio stated the wording in sub-section four, line 11,
should be changed to may furnish, as the wording in the original
bill sounded as if it were mandatory.

Senator Hernstadt asked if the intention was to set up reciprocity
with New Jersey. Ms Becker stated no information was given out
unless there was a summones; everything is done to protect the
licensee. See Exhibit E, page three. Ms Becker stated since

the referrence was made to sections a,b, and ¢, that language
could be added to section four. Senator Raggio asked why the
word record was left out. Ms Becker stated that word should be

in there, making the language tract.

Chairman Close read the change as was proposed: starting at
line 12, be furnished to it under this chapter which may be
otherwise obtained relative to the finances, earnings or revenue
of a licensee and all information and data pertaining to an .
applicant's criminal antecendents and background furnished to or
obtained by the board or commission from any source are con-
fidential. Ms Becker stated the word record should also be in-
cluded after the word criminal. Chairman Close asked if the
term antecendent was in the bill elsewhere. Ms Becker stated
that was in referrence to any background information -on anyone.
Senator Hernstadt asked why that should be confidential. Ms
Becker stated that has always been confidential.

Mr. Robbins Kahill, representing Nevada Resort Associations,
stated the F.B.I. will not give confidential information. Police
agencies can obtain criminal records but that is all. Senator
Hernstadt stated it must be concealeé for federal reasons.

Mr. Kahill stated whatever is released is not obtainable again.

The committee agreed to leave section four with the changes as
stated, sub-section ¢ would have the new wording, see Exhibit E,
lines 18 - 31, leave section five the way it is. Ms Becker
stated it would be better to include section five in section four
because section five made referrence to section four.

Chairman Close stated that would be accebted. Senator Ford stated
there would be two amendments on page 3, ameridment 10.

Chairman Close stated the amendments on line 14, sub-section two,
and lines 18 - 31 would be acceptable.

Ms® Becker stated section 26 was to be amended as written on
Exhibit E, and line 49 was covered in section eight, page two of

- =
\\;5*




O O

Senate Committee on Judiciary
April 24, 1981

the original bill. Senator Ford stated sub paragraph E was
not worded correctly to coincide with line 22 and should be marked
for the bill drafter to correct.

Ms Becker stated section 26, line 48, was to be corrected as
stated in Exhibit E; this was the language.requested by the F.B.I.
Section 27 changes the word commission to board and tracts with
section 46 on the changes on the petitiocn for redetermination.
Section 28, page 12, sub-section ¢ relates back to section 13
where the information was allowed to be confidential. Section 29
adds the word regulation on the top of page 13. Senator Raggio
stated the other language was moved to page nine that was taken
out of section 13. Line 25 was also in section nine, page three.

Section 30 has technical changes, on page 15, line four. Section
31 has two amendments; see Exhibit E. Section 32 handles the
problem of a tie vote in the board, page 16, lines nine and 10.
Section 33, page 17, lines 11 and 12 handle the taxing statutes
and increases the penalty on line. 19 from $25.00 to $50.00.

The board's cost on the paper work involved for processing a
penalty is about $40.00. Ms Becker stated in N.R.S. 401 it is
stated that any remedy can be used as penalty for the non-
payment of taxes. Senator Hernstadt asked if it was fair to close
the entire place; could the show room just be shut down. Ms
Becker stated the licensee is the one who pays the taxes; the
closing of the entire casino is up to the committee to decide

if it should all be closed down or just the show room. Section
34 is in the first page of the bill; there are technical changes.
Section 35, adds new language on page 21, line 24, and it gives
the option of revoking an employees work card if that employee

is convicted of any felony crime involving moral turpetude.
Section 36, page 22, lines 18 and 19 the committee agreed to
change the wording on section 35 ané 36 to felony and gross
misdemeanor. Section 37 is changed to allow someone under 21

to work in the accounting room. Senator Hernstadt asked how
young of worker was being considered. Ms Becker stated it could
be as young as 16. Section 38, line 13, tlhie penalty provision
was changed. Section 39 there are two changes; page 24, line 10
the interest was chandged from seven to 12%. Senator Hernstadt
asked how much tax was paid if a business was started in the
middle of the year. Chairman Close stated the full tax was paid,
Senator Raggio stated he felt the fees should be prorated.

Mr. Harlan Elges, Chief Tax and License for the Gaming Control
Board, stated in 1964 there was a $10.00 fee per slot machine;
What would happen is that rate would be prorated by three for

a quarter. Taxes vary on the amount of games in a casino. It

P .




O o

Senate Committee on Judiciary
April 24, 1981

would cause a lot of headaches. Mr. Elges stated the annual
fee was very large and that was the one that bothered most
people. Now legislation has been passed to allow 80% of the
fee to be transferred to another owner. Senator Raggio asked
Ms Becker to modify the wording and bring it back to the
committee so a more even alotment would be given to a person
Jjust going into business. Ms Becker stated there should be a
clarification on the refunds; there will be none. Line 13
and 14 is tracking the interest increase. Section 40 was
amended to show definitions of a restricted and non-restricted
operation. Section 41 involves the same thing. Section 42,
page 26, lines 3 - 7, the board asked that be deleted. This
is in regard to the annual fee on a poker table or a bridge
table. Ms Becker stated an amendment could be drafted to in-
clude the gross revenue tax and it would include the revenue
on poker games. Sub-section five would be deleted. Section
43 will be re-written. Section 44 will be re-written.’

Ms Becker stated the money the licensee is receiving should
always be included in gross revenue and asked Senator Hernstadt
if that was what he meant. Senator Hernstadt stated he felt
that money should be included and it should be handled now.

The following Bill Draft Resolutions were presented and re-
ceived for introduction:

BILL DRAFT RESOLUTION 2-1927: (:ClS. 60"f)

Removes reguirement of marginal notation by county recorder
when real property is sold on execution.

BILL DRAFT RESOLUTION 7-1929: (S8 405 )

Transfers duty of recording certain certificates of incorporation
from county recorder to county clerk.

The meeting was recessed until 1:;30 p.m.
Chairman Close called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m.

Chairman Close stated the reason for not including proprietorship
was because when one person sells to another, there is no
continuity of ownership. Ms Becker stated the 80% rule was
expanded as far as it could be expanded. Chairman Close asked

to have the cost looked into.




O O

Senate Committee on Judiciary
April 24, 1981

Chairman Close asked for the changes in Section 45. Ms Becker
stated thé change was in the interest rate, from 7% to 12%.
Senator Hernstadt asked if this was tracking all the way through.
Ms Becker stated yes, and it will have to be changed all the

way through if the committee in not happy with that increase.
Section 46 is the petition for redetermination. The language

in the bill was drafted to conform to the policy now. The
Gaming Control Board issues an audit deficiency determinat.on,
the licensee appeales that to the commission and the commission
has a hearing on it. If the licensee is still unhappy, a petition
is made for judicial review.

Senator Wagner asked if this was the section asking for another
level of due process or hearings and it is all new.

Ms Becker stated yes, the request was made that the board have

a full hearing on it and then the commission would also have a
full hearing. Senator Wagner stated she realized Ms Becker was
not testifying for them, but wanteé to know if she knew the
reasoning behind this request. Ms Becker stated Mr. Russell did
not make it clear as to why, but she felt it was to get another
bite of the apple. It would be a serious business for the Gaming
Control Board because a public meeting would have to be held,
notice would have to be given and the meetings are getting longer
and longer as it is. Ms Becker stated all audit deficiencies

do have a board member signature. A board member has to approve
it. Chairman Close asked if this was the way it was handled now.
Ms Becker stated yes, that is in section 46, 47 and 48.

Senator Don Ashworth asked for a change on section 48, line 32,
changing the time to 120 days. Senator Hernstadt asked if there
would be an objection to that change. Ms Becker stated a notice
of appeal was all that had to be filed and it seemed to her that
four months was a great deal of time. Senator Don Ashworth asked
if that was all it was. Ms Becker stated yes. The committee
agreed to leave it.

Ms Becker stated in section 49 N.R.S. 463.385 was added to that
section; that is the federal slot tax. It used to be there was

a federal slot tax and last session the state took over the $250.00
annual fee and it was not added into this statute; this is the .
willful failure to pay that. It should be the same as the will-
ful failure to pay any other fee. Section 50 raises the interest
rate from 7% to 12%; that is on pace 31, line 12, and it increases
the penalty from $25.00 to $50.00, line 17.

Senator Wagner asked for an explanation of the new language in
section 51. -

=B
}

10.




O | o

Senate Committee on Judiciary
April 24, 1981

.Ms Becker stated this was the section that dealt with the licensee
paying the casino tax. The auditors have no jurisdiction over
someone just leasing a space; the books cannot be seen to verify
whether or not the books are accurate. The licensee has the same
Problem of not being able to see the entertainment portion that is -
subject to the tax. Senator Hernstadt asked if a lease was reqQuired.
Ms Becker stated this would allow access to those records. There.
has never been a problem until this last year. The auditors went
in to do a check and the person who was running the casino enter-
tainment said no. Senator Wagner stated that was a problem of
access. Ms Becker stated that was right. Senator Hernstadt

asked if there was authority to close the show in that case. Ms
Becker stated no.

Ms Becker stated section 52 would allow the licensee to get the
Penalty payment from the person running the casion should the
reason for the penalty be because the report was wrong or because
there was no access to the books. Section 52 tracks with section
51. Section 53 are technical changes; section 55 deletes the
language because of lack of good character, honesty or integrity;
it tracks with S.B. 414. That same language was deleted from the
other statutes. Sections 53 and 54 were both technical changes.
Section 56 has changes on lines 10 and 11, stating all federal,
state, county and municipal licenses have to be maintained. Section
56 also has an amendment to it on Exhibit E, amendmanet 10, page
4 of exhibit.

Chairman Close stated the way the amendment was drafted there

would be a right to sell without board approval after the cessation
of a business. He asked it that is what was intended. Ms Becker
stated no, the amendment should the board. She asked if it should
be limited to two years or that the board would be able to do so.
Chairman Close stated he felt it should be in any manner the board
decided on. Ms Becker stated there manufacturers and distributors
license's for a reason; so much authority would circumvent the
intent of that. Senator Don Ashworth stated the board has to
approve it. Senator Wagner stated two years was plenty of time and
.there should be a limit in the amendment. Ms Becker said maybe the
amendment should read "the holder of the state gaming license may,
within two years of cessation of business, with the approval of the
board, instead of "or upon specific approval." Chairman Close
asked if this was for stopping business. Ms Becker stated yes.
Chairman Close stated there may be a case where a casino would

want to sell 10 slot machines and they cannot sell them because
they are not going out of business. Senator Hernstadt asked how

11.




@ @

Senate Committee on Judiciary
April 24, 1981

obsolete machines were disposed of. Ms Becker stated it is

sold to a distributor. Chairman Close asked if a slot machine
could be bought for a hotel, for example. Ms Becker stated that
cannot be done. Mr. Elges stated usually the machine is traded in;
it goes through a distributor or a licensed dealer. Machines have
to be bought from one of those sources. - Chairman Close -stated
there are situations with no cessation of business; but- that
business desires tc get rid of-«some machines. ' Senato. -Hernstadt
stated a sale would have to be made through a dealer. Chairman
Close stated he felt it was worded correctly now. He asked about
sub-section four; was that new language. Ms Becker stated yes.
Senator Wagner asked if there was a problem with that. Ms Becker
stated it explains that the burden is on the applicant to prove
suitability. That is stated in the regqular license proceedure.

It must never have said that in the manufactur and distributor
section; she felt sure that was the intent because that is

stated in every other gaming license. Chairman Close stated that
would be taken out of lines 14 through 21. Ms Becker stated sub-
section five states there must be compliance with all other pro-
visions of the Gaming Control Act if a manufacture or distributor
is also a corporation. Chairman Close asked what would be the
purpose of exempting them from a license. Ms Becker stated they
are not exempt from licensing; the corporate statutes in the
Corporate Gaming Act say the commission can exempt any corporation
at any time from any of those provisions as long as it is not
inconsistent with state policy. This tracks with that.

Ms Becker stated section 57, page 34, line one, there is a mis-
spelled word; greatly. The new language is on lines 11 and 12;
this is consistent with N.R.S. 463.140, subsection three. It is
also consistent with the new language in the bill that states a
machine has' to be approved by the board before it is put into
pPlay or if it is substantially modified. The industry had no
objection to ‘that. “Section 58 has technical changes because of
the split in N.R.S. 463.160. Mr. Daykin separated that statute
and now parts of it are in section nine and 10 of this act.
Section 59 referres to aliens holding a gaming license; it is on
pari-mutuel wagering; it is consistent with what was done last
session with the gaming control act. Section 60, lines 48 - 50
states the way the taxes are paid now; it was never set out
statutorily. Page 35, lines 9 - 13 allows for a penalty provision
for late payment or nonpayment of pari-mutuel wagering. The
penalty is paid quarterly on or before the last day of the first
month of the following quarter of operation. Mr. Egles stated
should the payment be received late, an automatic penalty applies.

12. - —
. E2




O

O @

Senate Committee on Judiciary
April 24, 1981

He stated the penalty still applies no matter what; should the
payment be made one day or 30 days late. Before the license

is considered surrendered, 30 days must lapse. Ms Becker stated
before that time lapsed, an order to show cause or complaint would
probably be filed. Sections 61, 62, 63 and 64 are all technical
changes. Section 63 does not expand the peace officer provisions.
Section 64 deals with the sealing of records. Senator Hernstadt
asked what the use would be of having expungement without having
the effect for all purposes. Senator Don Ashworth stated he
thought Senator Raggio's point was that expungement be declared.
Senator Wagner asked what the reasoning was for this. Ms Becker
stated the Rosenthal case where records were sealed between one
trial and the next. Once a record is sealed, it is as if the
crime never occurred. Senator Hernstadt stated maybe this ought
to be amended to provide that if for some reason that knowledge
would become known, then it is a matter of the gaming control
board's documentation and it is in the system and should be left
in the system. If it has been sealed properly and it is not known,
then it should not be able to be used. Chairman Close stated
maybe it should be restricted to matters dealing with gaming
violations only. Senator Don Ashworth asked if the question would
be asked if there were any records that had been expunged that
related to gaming violations. Senator Wagner asked if leaving

the word inquire into and removing the word inspect would be
better. Ms Becker stated inquire into and utilize for purposes of
licensing under this act any record seal pursuant to. Senator
Wagner felt this section was too broad. The committee asked

Ms Becker to draft an amendment to this section.

Ms Becker stated section 65 tracks with section 64. Section 67
allows gaming control agents to get under cover driver's license.
Section 68 is all repealed.

Senator Wagner asked about section 25, page 10, line 22; was the
rest of the language removed. Ms Becker stated no, the other
language was kept, there was an addition. Senator Wagner stated
without language in the bill in regard to the protection of the
personal property of board members, she could not move on this
bill. Chairman Close asked for an amendment to the bill in regard
to that. Senator Hernstadt suggested it be rereferred to the
committee so it could be reprinted. - .

SENATE BILL NO. 527:

Makes various changes to the laws regulating gaming.

Senator Don Ashworth moved to amend and rerefer
S.B. 527 back to Judiciary Committee.

D |

13. \(ads




O @

Senate Committee on Judiciary
April 24, 1981

Senator William Hernstadt seconded the motion.

The motion carried four to 0. (Senators Ford,
Raggio and Keith Ashwroth were absent for the
vote.)

Ms Becker asked Chairman Close 1Y languagé was to be "drafted
on proration for the annual fees, the gross revenue on the
poker rake off and the fiscal impact. Chairman Close said
that was correct.

The following Bill Draft Resolutions were presented and re-
ceived for introduction:

BILL DRAFT RESOLUTION NO. 41-1193:

Verifies the cliff building of a licensing department where
a2 gaming interest is transmitted into a living, irrevocable
trust.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at
2:00 p.m.

Respectfully submitted by:

Sally ;gyes, Sedretary

APPROVED BY:

14. i)




Committee on JUDICIARY

SENATE AGENDA

COMMITTEE MEETINGS

P~ o

Day _ Friday , Date April 24

-
L 4

_EXHIBIT A
g

, Room 213

, Time 8:00 a.m.

S. B. No. 535--Prohibits unauthorized interception of

coded television signals.




. EXHIBIT B
. ATTSNDANCE ROSTER ro@ coMmq()TEE MEETINGS

ZNATE COMMITTEE ON __JUDICIARY

DATE: April 24, 1981

.
| FIERSE PRINT P NT SLTASE PRINT PLEASE PRT
- ——— - . =

NAME ORGANIZATION & ADDRESS TELEPEONE

R ST St I

Mok Venper | 53] € ST Souvt few 1356 pags

Dacnl [ Roy [ 1860 Rar~/ re Drepm g 12200 op
R ) ’q v_ :
/u‘;, Aﬂ/ yxt"? 'rg: .'Jr\~ ? ' "? ‘(I/Z-J.
—
WJ,/ r';ovg;_(é/ma Fz_k Y/ - ML -2L G- 200
v ’ '
73 ; 7 L | ersds 2 o To2 T2 CaFadll’

%




27 :

32

Law Oeecgs
BTD 8 4 LvIRION
RE D & ALVESSON BLDG
420 30 FOuRTM §Y

a® 41Ge" NIvale

EXHIBIT C

(a.) Any person who:

(1) Knowingly carries out an unauthorized interception of
a subscription teleconsunicacion; ’

{2) Knowiligly atterpts o carry out or ¢ ‘pires to carry
cuTear cpavraesiocd Lntoscepsion wf A «Lo00 tesecContIun: -
cation;

(3) Knowirgly uses an unauthorized interception of a sub-
scription telecommunication for his own commercial advantage or

inancial gain; or } '

(4) Knowangly zanufactures, Gistributes, sells, pcssesses
or installs any device designed to carry out an unauthorized
interception of subscription telecommnnicat;on;
shail be liable for civzl penality under suosection (L) and shall
be subject to criminal penalty under subsection (c).

(b.}

(1) Any person who is acgrieved by any vielation of sub-
section (a} may comrence a civil action for actual damages,
for damages under paragraph 1 hezeof and for equitable relief
aga:nst the person whe is allegeC to have committed the violation.

{2) Any person whc willfully violates subsection (a) is
subject tc a civil penality of 5100.00 per day for each day of
violation and for each act of violation. All eivii pena.ties
recovered shall be paid tec the State of Nevada. e

{c.) Any perscr whc wiolates subsection la) shail be guilty
of a misdemeanorﬂ

{d.) Tor purposes of this section:
{1} - The term “"Interception® mecans the receipt cf_
any subscription telecommunication.
(2] The zerm “"sibscription telecormunicaticn® means
any telecommunication wnich is intencded for receipt in inteli-

-igizie form only oy a cerscn aic has acreea o pay a fee or

charce to the person origingting the telecommunicat.ica ¢r Als

acenz. r-‘ -




® 3 -t S U N W

©

Law Ornices
RLIO & ALVERSON
8L @ ALVERSON BLBC
420 80 Fouate §°Y
LAS VEGAY NMEVADA
09100

- (3) The term “telecommunication” means any transmission
emission, or reception of signs, signals, writing, images, and

sound or intelligence of any nature by wire, radio, optical,

microwave or other electromagnetic systems.

«

B i

T




O

RoBERT W. Hegary

O ¢ ExmiBIT D

Law Orrices
GORDON & HEeALY
CHARTERED
1821 JEFPFERSON Prace. N W
WasHINGTON, D.C. 20026

HaroLo GOorooN . ) Ro-:‘:vcg.u;:::o .
v A Mt Casrt Adoacss
i A R April 16, 1981 GORMIL

Senator William Hernstadt
401 S. Carson Street
Carson City, Nevada 89710

Re: Act to prohibit unauthorized interception
of coded television sigrals

Dear Senator Hernstadt:

As counsel practicing before the FCC the following
is in response to your reguest for an opinion as to whether
the proposed Nevada state law prohibiting the unauthorized
interception of coded.television signals, falls within an
area preempted by. federal law, it is our opinion that it
does not. A brief outline of the federal statutes in this
area is necessary to understand this conclusion.

In order for a state statute to be preempted by a
federal statute there must be a clear Congressiohal intent

to do so, Davies Warehouse Companv v. Bowles, 321 U.S. 144
(1944), which intent must be cEearIy manifested by being
definitely expressed or Clearly implieé. E.P. Welch Compan
V. New Hampshire, 306 U.S. 79 (1939). Federal preemption
will occur when federal regulations are so pervasive as to
make reasonable the inference that Congress left no room for

the state to supplement it. Rice v. Santa Fe Clevator
Corporation, 331 U.S. 218 (1947). S

There is-a line of cases which hold that no state

may regulate an intrastate entity where it regulation would
interfere with the reception of interstate radio communications.

See Western Union Telegraph Co. v. Foster, 247 U.S. 105
(1918); Pensacola Telegraph Co. v. Western Union Telegraph
' 45 FCC Eg 204

——

Co., 96 U.S. (1578); Telerent Leasing Corp., 0
TT§74), aff'd sub nom. North Carolina Unilities Commission _

-
. Xy

&




O.

O , O

GORDON & HEALY "

CHARTERED

Senator William Bernstadt
April 16, 1981
Page Two

v. FCC, 537 F. 28 797, cert. den., 429 U.S. 1027 (1976),
reaff'd, 522 F.24 1036, cert. den. 4242 U.S. 874 (1977); and
Orth-O-Vision, Inc. 69 FCC 24 657 (1978). Eowever, in
these cases, state statutes were found to be incompatible
with federal statutes, since the state statutes acted to
frustrate the purpose of tre federal.statute. The.proposed
Nevada statutes .would not. “strate ary: federa - gtarutes.

Instead it would bolster f-deral l-w ang act. fo orotect
property rights which is a permissibile state function.

Section 605 of the Communications Act of 1934 as
amended, 47 USC §605, states, inter alia, that "... no
person not being entitled thereto shail receive or assist in
receiving any interstate of foreign communication by wire or
radio and use the same or zny information therein contained
for his own benefit or for the benefit of another not
entitled thereto...® However, reception of radio communications
(radio includes video) intendeé to be received by the public
in general is exempted from this prohibition. (See attachment
for full text of statute).

Federal courts have split on the gquestion of
whether subscription television (STV) service is-the type of
broadcasting intended to be received by the public which is
exempt: from the protection of section 605. In the most
recent case the Sixth Circuit Court of Appeals held that
subscription television service was protected by Section 605
from unauthorized use and that a subscription television
business has a private right of action against & defendant
who sold decoders or decoder schematics. Chartwell Communications
Group v. Philip Westbrook, 637 F.2& 459 (6th Cir. 1980).
However, in a decision which is under appeal, a circuit
court in California has helé that subscription television
service is broadcasting intended for the public and thus not
protected by section 605. National Subscription Television
v. S&H TV, F. Supp. ___, 48 RR 2¢ 379, ;C.D. Calaf.

1980) .

In order to clear up any confusion which may exist
as to the applicability of section 605 to6 subscription
television service, an attempt is being made to introduce a
bill into Congress, similar to H.R. 7747 which was sponsored
last July by former Representative Richardson Preyer (D-

- N.C.), which would prescribe criminal and civil penalities

for the unauthorized reception of subscription television
programming. If such legislation were enacted there might
be some question as to whether it preempted state laws on
the same subject. Until such time it is fairly clear that
states can act in this area.

"




)

® O

GORDON & HEALY =

CHARTERED

Senator William Hernstadt
April 16, 1981
Page Three

California’'has already passed such legislation.
In 1980 California Assembly Bill No. 3475 was passed which,
like the Nevada bill, prohibited the manufacture, sale or
distribution of devices designed to intercept subscription
television signals. However, the California bill also
prohibits the sale of plans-cr kits.fer devices x. ‘printed

~NA

circuits to assist:-in such unlawfuls interception <nce
many dealers now.offer such idts o= imstructioris culd

be a worthy idea to add similar langusge to make the proposed
Nevada bill more effective.

In order to make the proposed bill more effective,
You may wish to consider giving & private right of action to
persons who have had their signals intercepted by the prohibited
devices. Enforcement of Private civil actions by indiviguals
might tend to supplement the enforcement capabilities of the
state. "

It might also be advisable to define subscription
television service to include pay programming provided by
multipoint distribution service (MDS) since this is normally
not considered a television broadcast service. MDS stations
are FCC common carriers not broadcast stations. ‘MDS signals
are transmitted on microwave fregquencies which cannot be
received on a television sets without a special antenna and
cown converter. Such MDS systems also provide pay TV service
to hotels, homes and apartments and are also the target of
pirate interception. .

The Federal Communications Commission has also
recently indicatedé an intent to prosecute manufacturers ané
sellers of non-approved subscription television decoders
Fursuant to section 302 of the Communications Act of 1934 as
amended, 47 USC §302. (See attached PUblic Notice). The
enforcement of this statute in zné of itself, éoes not
evidence an attempt by the federal government to pPreempt
this area.

In conclusion, although there currently exist
federal statutes which are being used to -attempt to curb the

unauthorized reception of subscription television signals,
it does not appear that this area has been preempted by

;o \lo"q

——




@ @

GORDON & HEALY .

CHARTERED

Senator William Hernstadt
April 16, 1981
Page Four

federal law and the states are free to enact legislation in
this area to protect legitimate property rights of program
originators. Obviously, this is a new industry and such
unlawful interception may threaten its very existence before
it gets off the ground. J

Veryt&tru . zours,
GORDOX & HEALY, Chartered

rRobert W. 'Bealy




e o

COMMUNICATIONS ACT 6r 1834, AS AMENXDED 147

tions transferred to the Commission by this Act, or (2) involves
the exercise of jurisdiction similar to that granted to the Com-
mission under the provisions of this Act.

(c) All records transferred to the Commission under this Act
shali- be available for use by the Commission to the same extent
as if such records were originally records of the Commission. All
final valuations and determinations of depreciation charges by the
Interstate Commerce Commission with respect to common ecar-.
riers engaged in radio or wire communication, and all orders of
the Interstate Commerce Commizcl o writh ‘» -pest 44 sich
ations and determinations, shall- ¥ v= the sa d effecs
as though made bv the Commiseisr under th -<Aes '

(d) The provisions of this Act shall noi affect su ts com
menced prior to the date of the organization of the Commission ;
and all such suits shall be continued, proceedings therein had,
appeals therein taken and judgments therein rendered, in the
same manner and with the same effect as if this Act had not been

assed. No suit, action, or other proceeding lawfully commenced
or against any agency or officer of the United States, in rela.
tion to the discharge of official duties, shali abate by reason of any
transfer of authority, power, and duties from- such agency or
officer to the Commission under the provisions of this Act, but
the court, upon motion or supplemental petition filed at any time
within twelve months after such transfer, showing the necessity
for a survival of such suit. action, or other proceeding to obtain
a settlement of the questions involved. may zllow the same to be
mainteined by or against the Commission.

URAUTBORIZED PUBLICATION OF COMMUNICATIONS
SEC. 605.17 Except as authorized by chapter 119, title 18, United
172 Section 605 was amended to read as above by Public Lew 80-351, &

~ proved' June 18, 1968, 82 Stat. 223. Section 605, enacted as Public No. 41’3’.

approved June 18, 1984, 48 Stat. 1108, formerly read as follows:

ec. 605. No person receiving or assisting in receiving, or tranemitting, or
asgisting in tronsmitting, any. interstate or foreign communication by swire
or radio shall divulge or publish the existence, contents, substance, purport,

cffect, or meaning thereof, except through authorized channels of tremsmis-

sion or reception, to any person other than the addresaee, his agent, or
attorney, or to a person employed or authorized to forward such communi-
cation to its destmation, or to proper accounting or distributing officers of
the various communicating centers over which the communication may bde
passed, or to the master of a ship under whom he is serving, or in response
to a subpena issued by e court of competent jurisdiction, or on demand of
other lawful authority; and mo person not being authorized by the sender
shall intercept any communication and dirvnlpe or publish the existence, con-
tents, substence, purport, effect, or meaning of such intercepted communica-
tion to any person; and no person not beinp entitled thereto shal! receive or
assist in receiving any interstate or foreignm communication bﬁ wire or radio
and use the same or any information therein contained for his own benefit
or for the bemefit of another mot entiticd thereto; and mo person hcvu:x
received such intercepted communication or raving become acqucinted wi
the contents, substance, purport, eflect or meaning of the same or ¢n¥ part
thereof, knowing that such information was so obtained, shall divuige or
pudlish the existence, contents, substance, Jpurport, cfect, or meaning of the
same or part thereof, or use the same or any information therein com-
tained for his own benefit or for the benefit of another not entitled thereto:
Provided, That this section shall nog apply to the receiving, divulging, pubd-
lishing, or utiliting the conmtents of any radio communication drocdcgst or
transmitted by amateurs or others Jor the use of the general pubdlic, or ve-
lating to ships in distress.

.




O . @

148 COMMUNICATIONS ACT OF 19034, AS AMENDED

States Code,’™ no person receiving, assisting in receiving, trans-
mitting or assisting in transmitting, any interstate or forei
communication by wire or radio s divulge or publish the
existence, contents, substance, pu:nort, effect, or meaning thereof,
except through authorized channels of transmission or reception,
(1) to any person other than the addressee, his agent, or attor-
ney, (2) to a person employed or authorized to forward such
communication to its destination, (8) to proper accounting or
distributing officers of the various communicatin centers-dver
which the communication may be passed, (4) to the master of a
ship under whom he is serving, (5) in response to a subpena
issued by a court of competent jurisdiction, or (6) on demand of
other lawful authority. No person not being authorized by the
sender shall intercept any radio communication and divulge or
ublish the existence, contents, substance. purport, effect, or mean-
gm of such intercepted communication to any person. No person
not being entitled thereto shall receive or assist in receiving any
interstate or foreign communication by radio and use such com-
munication (or any information therein contained) for his own
benefit or for the benefit of another not entitied thereto. No per-
son having received any intetce&ted radio communication or hav-
ing become acquainted with the contents, substance, purport,
effect or meaning of such communication (or any part thereof)
knowing that such communication was intercepted, shall divulge
or publish the existence, contents. substance, purport, effect, or
meaning of such communication (or any part thereof) or use such
communication (or any information therein contained) for his

own benefit or for the benefit of another not entitled thereto. -

This section shall not apply to the receiving, divuiging, publishing.
or utilizing the contents of any radio communicaton which 18
broadcast or transmitted by amateurs or others for the use of
the general public, or which relates to ships in distress.

WAR EMERGENCT~-POWERS OF PRESIDENT
SEC. 606.1" (a) During the continuznce of a war in which the

11 18 USC 2511(2) (a) and (b) authorizes certain 'interce%sion of com-
munications communications common carriers and by the Federal Com-
munications mission as follows:

Seec. 2511(2) ('49 It shall not be vnlawful under this chapter for an operator
of a switchdoard, or an officer, employee, or agent of any communication
eommon _carvier, whose facilities are used i the transmission of a wire
communication, to intercept, disclose, or use that communication in the
normal course of his employment while engoged in any activity which is o
necessary incident to the rendition of his service or to the protection of the
rights or property of the carrier of such communication: Provided, That said
communication common carriers shall not utilize service observing or random
monitoring except for mechanical or service quality control.checka.

(b) It shall not be umlawful under this ciapter for an officer, employee,
or ggent of the Federal Communications Commission, tn the normal course
of his employment and in discharpe of the monitoring responsibilitier exer-
cised by the Commission in the enforcement of chapter 5 of title 47 of the
United States Code, to intercept a wire commwnication, or oral communica-
t:;;m transmitted by radio, or to disclose or use the information theredy
obtained.

174 Joint yesolution effective July 25, 1847, Public, No. 239, 80th Congress,
15t Session, Sec. 8, 61 Stat. 449 provided that in the interpretation of this
Section “the date when this joint resolution becomes effective shall be
deemed to be the date of the termination ¢f any state of war heretofore




: “&.A
¥

"1y
a

¥

s PUBLICNOTICE -

vss FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION
1519 M STREET N.W.
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20554 345

News media information 202/254-7674. m;omdmof releases and texts 202/632-0002
August 1S, 1980 - G

d"‘f o,

o

MANUFACTURERS AND SELLERS OF NON-APPROVED
SUBSCRIPTION TELEVISION (STV)
© DEQODERS ARE CAUTIONED

) Devices that are installed on television receivers to decode or

unscranble television signals transmitted by a licensed Subscription
(STIV) station are part of complete commnications systems required to be °
approved by the Federal Oommunications Comiission prior t© mamnufacture, inport,
sale, offer for sale, shipment, or use in connection with SIV service.  The
Camission's rules relating to equirent and apparatus and subscription
televisimsystmarepredicatedmmiﬂemuasofmefﬁciany,
prevention and minimization of harmful interference to authorized radio and
television, as well as protection of the consuzer sgainst products which will
degrade television reception performance. Such results can and may be caused by
devices not meeting Commission technical standards. Moreover, the Commission's
“systems approval” process assures the overall integrity of SIV service as
estzblished by our regqulatory scheme. S

"~ The Commission's statutory jurisdicticn in these areas is contained in
Sections 302,~303(e) and 303(r) of the Commnications Act of 1934, as zmended -
(47 USC Sections 302, 303(e)). Section 302(b) of the Communications Act states:

47 United States Code, Section 302

(b) NO PERSON SHALL MANUFACIURE, IMFORT, SELL,
OfFER FOR SALE, SHIP, OR USE DEVICES
WHICH FAIL TO QOMPLY WITH REGULATIONS PRO-
MJILGATED PURSUANT TO THIS SECTION.

As noted, Subscription Television decoders are, pursuant to the
Commission's rules, ccnsidered for gpproval in a "systems® context or
configuration, and must also be found to be in carpliance with the appliczble

" technical performance strictures of Section 73.644 of the Commission's Rules
before FCC gpproval may issue. One reason for approving SIV devices anly in a
"systems" context is to estzblish canpatibility and integrity between the
transmission function, at one end, and the reception/decoding function on the
other end. Moreover, this “"systems® approach is necessary to assure that
(1) technical standards for color, monochrome and aural signals are met,

(2) spectral energy does not exceed limitations, (3) no increase in

television bandwidth cccurs, (4) the signal quality is comparable to

conventional television without an increase in radiated power, (5) the signal

is recoverable without material degradation, (6) internal modificatidn of a

swbscriber's television set is not required, (7) there is no undue - 4)
e

(over)




S

in&ﬁmeﬁmsthdeﬁoesbo&eréaﬂbw&lwisimmiuﬂm,-
and (8) SIV systems are no more susceptible to interference than conventional
broadcasting systess. :

- The manufacture, import, sale, offer for sale, shipment or use of a
decoder that has not been approved by this Commission constitutes a violation
of the Commmications Act and the Comnission's rules and mbjects a person
agprehended in such violation to the penal provisions of Title V of the
Commnications Act of 1934, as smended. Moreover, fines of not more than $500
for each and every day during which an offense occurs may be levied; or for
wilfull or repeated violations, a forfeiture penalty not in excess of $2000
for each violation may be levied with each day of a contimuing violation
constituting a separate offense. . .

- FCC -




T

A

J

O
Family-viewing

can of worms
is reopened

Ferguson compiies with appeals
court order and sends case
back to commission; sventual
FCC decision can be appealed

The family-viewing case, which began in
1975 and which has been inactive for six
months, is coming back to life, -end it
could be e long one. Last week in a U.S:
district court in Los Angeles, the original
judge in the proceeding, in. conformiiy
with an appeals court opinion overturning
his decision, referred s portion of the case
10 the FCC. The FCC's decision, whatever
it is, will itself be subject to appeal.

At issue is the action by the three net-
works in 1975 in adopting a policy of
restricting the first two hours of prime
time to material suitadble for the entire
family, and the National Association of

* inclusion of the concept in
elevision code.

Hollywood writing, directing and acting
guilds, as well as & number of individual
writers, producers and directors an
Tandem Productions, sued the commis-
sion, its members individually and the
NAB. They claimed that the networks had
acted in part at least as a result of pressure
applied by then-FCC Chairman Richard E.
Wiley, and that Wiley and the networks
combined to coerce the NAB into adopting
family viewing as part of its code. In sum,
they said, the commission and broadcast-
ing industry parties had combined to vio-
late their First Amendment right to create
programing, and the commission had vio-
lated the Administrative Procedure Act, as
well. :

Judge Warren J. Ferguson, then a dis-

HOWARD

o el
Law & Regulationz

trict court judge but now a member of the
U.S. Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cir-
cuit, ruled in favor of the plaintiffs; indeed
he agreed with them on virtually every
point (BROADCASTING, Nov. 8, 1976).

But a three-judge panel of the court of
appeals for the Ninth Circuit agreed with
the defendsnts that the case had been
brought to the wrong forum; it
unanimously. held thai the case, as s mat-
ter of original jurisdiciion, -belonged at the
FCC. Thus, it directed the district court to
refer the case agsinst the FCC defendants
to the commission. It aiso said the lower
court should hold in abeyance the com-
piaints apainst the natwneks and the NAB
uatii tt e commigsion rasied ontho‘ma'te
and any judicial review of the commis-
sion’s Cecision wzs completed. The cir-
cuit’s 12 judges later denied the pleintiffs®
petition for rehearing, and the Supreme
Court in October denied their request for
review (BROADCASTING, Oct. 12, 1980).

So last week, lawvers for the Hollywood
complainants, the FCC, the networks and
the NAB were back in the U.S. district
courtroom, with Ferguson sitting as a dis-
trict court judge, 1o discuss the order in
which Ferguson would sead the case back
to the commission.

The order itself is simple; it refers the
complaints against the government to the
commission, and says the action on claims
against the private parties will be deferred
pending judicial review of the FCC’s deci-
sion on the matter referred to it. Ferguson
orally directed the commission to issue a
status report on the matter in 90 days.

There was some disagreement last week
as to the extent of the issue referred to the
commission. The networks contend that
since the appeals court had vacated
Ferguson's decision, the entire matier was
before the commission—his factual find-
ings as well as his legal conclusions. They
asked the court simply to refer the entire
matter to the FCC, and allow it to deter-
mine the procedures it will follow.

E. STARK

Media Brokers— Consultants

NAB CONVENTION
CAESAR’S PALACE HOTEL

(By appointment only)

. 578 Ilidlua Avenue

Noew York, N.Y. 10022

(212) 3568-0408

an_mifu 6 1981

mission would proceed. However, one law-
ver gaid the staff would probably recom-
mend that the commission move swifily to
invite comments on that question, as well
as on the merits of the plaintiffs’ claims.
Although the hearing i Ferguson's
oo U was calied 10 cunsider the langusge
of the ‘order ‘referring the matter to the
commission, i*- was clear Ferguson was
also interested in explaining his theory of
the case, and his reason for ruling as he
did. He said his aim was to enlerge broad-
casters’ First Amendment rights by mak-
ing cleer they need not succumbd to
government pressure; indeed, he sug-
gested that the networks, in contending
they had acted 10 bead off formal govern-
ment action by the commission or Con-
gress, had demonstrated a lack of concern
for the First Amendment
Those observations were challenged by
Timothy Dyk, counsel for CBS. He said
that network's coocern for-its First
Amendment rights has been demon-
strated by the large sums it has spent de-
fending them in court—not always suc-
cessfully. He also said the networks have a
right to engage in self-regulation as a
means of heading of government action.

Anti-pay-piracy
bill being
readied for House

Legislation, based on last year's
Preyer etffort, would fine firms
up to $1 miillon for unauthorized
reception and resale of pay
programing; NCTA, MPAA, Time
among those supporting bill

Legislation, prescribing civil and criminal
penalties as high as $1 million for the
unauthorized reception of pay television
may be introduced in Congress by early
June.

Representatives of the pay television in-
dustry have come to general agreement on
language for & bill, aimed at stopping the
manufacturers, distributors and users of
radio equipment designed o intercept the
pay television broadcasts of MDS and STV
operators and the point-to-multipoint
satellite transmissions of the pay cable net-

A R T A Tah IR DVE )

PR Rl sl BT g




works. Th
in the House and :

The drafiers of the legislation, which is
modeled on a bill introduced without suc-
cess last year by former Representative

ichardson Preyer (D-N.C.), represent

facets of the pay industry: the Na-

Association of MDS Service Com-
panies (NAMSCO); the National Cable
Television Associstion; the Motion Pic-
ture Association of Amer.ca; Microband
Inc., » major MDS operstor, and Time
Inc., which includes Eome Box Office
among its diverse media holdings

Charles Walsh, an sttorney for
NAMSCO, said the legislation would clear
up existing ambiguities in the Com-
munications Act. If the legislation were
adopted, he said, there would “‘no longer
be any misunderstandings that' intercep-
tion was a crime or a violation of a private
right that will be prosecuted criminally. or
civilly™ Experience has shown that suc-
cessful prosecutions of pay television pir-
ales in various cities hss discouraged the
practice there, Wnish acdded.

None of the Washington attorneys
working op the legislation wanted to put a
time frame on it, but Friz ‘Auewzy of
MPA A guessed that it could be introduced
within two months and hoped that it would
pass both houses of Congress within the
year. He said he expects *‘very little credi-
ble opposition®” to it.

Welsh is also fairly confident that the
bill, once introduced, will move quickly

@ugh Congress. The issue has “‘enough

tiop and enough pizazz'’ 10 attract at-

ion and prompt action, he said. People
are beginning to realize, he said, that with-
out efective safeguards, psy programing
could start drying up. *“They foresee the
time when the motion picture industry is
not going to release its product 10 2
medium it believes is insecure.”

Walsh also suggesied the bill might at-
tract support from the dsta communica-
tions industry, which might have an even
greater desire 10 protect its transmissions
from unauthorized reception than does
the entertzinment industiry. “‘Efforts are
being made to develop regular com-
munications with those companies.”
Walsh said.

The search for 2 House sponsor is
focused on the House Telecommunica-

ey are now looking for spousorsin Subcommittee. The industry repre- Qud

sentatives have met with various subcom-
mittee members and their staffs about par-
ticular provisions of the legislation and
about sponsorship. According to one
source, Heary Waxman if.) seems
the likeliest candidate. He has shown in-
terest in the problem in the past and many
of his constituents—his district encom-
passes Hollywood and West Hollywood—
are involved in motion picture,

The representatives.are not releasing the
languege of their. new bill, but they admit
thai it is similar to-the ill-fated H.R. 7747
introduced by Preyer last July. The bill was
passed with some modification by the
House Commerce ‘Commitiee, but . died
with the House rewrite bill (H.R. 6121).t0
whien ‘it 'had becn sed."Preyer ko
lost his 'bid for re-election in November, is
not around to resurrest the: bill

Unaer the provisions of Preye:'s bill, 8
person who carried out or attempted to ca-

rry out &n ‘‘unauthorized reception of a
il pion -tels wall o { -]
*uses Weisupscriptio 2eom won

for his cwn commercial advantage'’ would
have been 'subject=io"<ivil and ‘enmina
penslien: :Aac th salties i
Under the civil subseciion. individuals in-
tercepting signals for heir own benefit
would be liable for damages of $100 per
day, up to $1,000. and court costs. In-
dividuals or companies making commer-
cial use of the intercepted material would
be lieble for count cosis and *'such puni-
tive damges as [the court) considers ap-
propriate.”’ Under the criminal subsection,
individuals guilty of unauthorized recep-
tion could be fined up 10 $25,000 and im-
prisoned for no more than 2 year. In-
dividuals guilty of intercepting programing
for commercial gain would be subject to
fines up to $250,000 and imprisonment up
to 18 months. Companies found guilty of
the same offense could be fined SI
million.

One of the forces 1hat actively opposed -

the Preyer bill last year when 1t was in-
troduced was the Sociely for Private and
Commercial Earth Stations (SPACE), an
association of manufaciurers, distributors
and users of stand-alone satellite earth sta-
tions. But there is 2 chaance that SPACE
meay not oppose legislation this time
around.

BUYERS/SELLERS of
MEDIA PROPERTIES

“Iwill be available for confiden- MILTON Q. FORD
tial consultation ing th

Convention in Las 5 & ASSOCIATES

invite you to call on me in IA BROKER
Central Tower Suite 1530 in msﬂiﬂ.mﬁfms
the Las Vegas Hilton.” 5050 Popler Ave. 700 New Hampshire Ave N.W,
.- Milton Q. Ford | Memphis, TN 38157 Weshington, DL. 20337
- Specializing In Sunbelt Propertics Ll

Ty Ava B 80U

ing to Richard Brown, SPACE’s
genersl counsel, if all the pay ceble net-
works would agree to allow individual
earth station owners and satellite master
antenna television system (SMATV)
operators to buy their programing at a
reasonsble ‘‘marketplace™ rate, SPACE
would not oppose the Jegislation.

Radio dereg

survives stay

request and
goes into effect

Court re acts petition by UCC
while NAP seaks clerification
trom FCC on several points

The FCCis order dveguizting redio went
Jes sched or Thursdny,
despitesafions of the ‘United Church of
Christ to.s:ay the order. But it wasn't only
he church tha: found some fault with the
der; the Nauonal Associetion of Broad-
casters, while supporting its ‘“‘general
thrust,” geked the commission for partial
reconsideration. It said it wants to “‘insure
thet the themes of broader licensee discre-
tion, less government involvement and
reduced paperwork’ are implemented as
fully es possible.

The church, which has appesied the
deregulation order to the U.S. Court of
Appeals in Washington, had filed a motion
with the court on Monday, requesting &
siay. The court on Tuesday issued & brief
statemen: denying the motion, without
even waiting for the commission's
response. The church filed its motion with
the court after the commission, on March
27, rejecied a stay request the church hed
filed with it.

NAB sought clarification and modifica-
tion of the deregulation order in three
areas:

8 The ‘‘generalized obligation of com-
mercial radio stations to offer programing
responsive 10 public issues” should be
clarified. The NAB said the commission
should. for instance, state specifically what
weight it will attach to issue-orienied pro-
grams carried at “‘higher listenership®’
hours as opposed to other hours of the
broadcast day, and make clear when broad-
casters can rely on the programing of other
statiops in making up their own program
schedule.

® The order shouid be modified to
reduce the paperwork required by modify-
ing or eliminating the requirement that &
licensee document the manner in which it
determined a particular issue in the list of
issues with which it said had deglt was 03
facing the community. The NAB said
agreed with Commissioner Anne Jones'’s
statement that the requirement was
‘‘residual ascertainment'’ and could lead
to 8 restoration of formal asceriainment
which, she said, ‘‘should be buried
forever”

8 The licensee should not be required

.......




EXHIBIT E

O @

SCB Amendment No. 10
Date: 4/15/81

GCB FURTHER AMENDMENTS TO S.B. 527

As a result of the Joint Judiciery hearings on April 15 and 16,
1981, the following additional amendments are proposed to S.B.

527:

Section 7, page 2, line 30: When the definition of "work

permit"” was moved, the last sentence of the subsection was acci-
dently omitted. Therefore, on line 30 the foldoving should be
added: "A document issued by any authority for any employment
other than gaming is not a valid work permit for the purposes of

this chapter." -

Section 14, page 6, lines 29-39:

Subsection 2 should be amended to read as follows: "The
commission shall schedule a hearing within 5 days after [the
effective date of. the order pursuant to the provisions of NRS

463.312 and) receipt of the notice of defense. [f]For the.pur-

poses of this hearing, the emergency order shall be deemed the

complaint."”

Subsection 3 should be amended as follows: "The emergency
order must state [the time and place of the hearing and] the

facts upon which the finding of the necessity for the suspension

is based. -




O

O O

GCB Amendment No. 10
- Date: 4/15/81
_Page 2
Subsection 4 should be amended as follows: "The person
whose work permit is summarily suspended must file a notice of
defense within [3] 30 days after the effective date of the
emergency order. Failure to timely file this notice waives his

right to a hearing before the Miskionand tp Qicizl’review

of the final decision."

A new subsection 6 should be adéed as follows: "Except as

otherwise provided in this section, the procedures outlined in

463.312 shall be followed." a

Section 19, page 7, lines 22-25: This section should be

amended as follows: “Evefy sheriff , district attorney and chief

of police shall furnish to the board, on forms prepared by the
board, all information obtained during the course of [investigating ~

or prosecuting any person whenever] any significant investigation

or prosecution of any person if it appears that a violation of

any law relating to gaming has occurred."

Section 26, page 10, lines 36-39: Additional language

should be added at the end of this paragraph- e as follows: "The

former licensee shall be required to maintain all books, papers'

and records necessary for the audit for a period of one year

from the date of surrender or revocation of his gaming license.

If the former licensee files a petition for redetermination or.

™ ol

\b@




@ O

GCB Amendment No. 10
Date: 4/15/81
Page 3

seeks judicial review of the commission's determination, then

all books, papers and.recofds must be maintained until a final

determination is rendered.

Section 25, pacge 9,,.line§ . -ol:

Subsection 3 on line 14 €h:Uld be amended by adding ct the
beginning of line 14 the underscc ed language, ... and al’

information and data pertaining to an applicant's craminal

antecedents and background furnished to or obtained by the

board or commission from any source are confidential and must

not be revealed in whole or in part except as ...
Lines 15-17 remain unchanged.

Lines 18-31 should be deleted and replaced by: "The

commission may reveal any information or data which is confidential

under this section to an authorized agent of any agency of the

United States government, of any state, or of a political

subdivision of this state pursuant to regulations adopted by the

commission."

- Section 26, page 10, line 48: Add "... this state [.] and

may exercise any proper law enforcement function or duty.

.
I3




O O

-GCB Amendment No. 10
Date: 4/15/81
‘Page 4

Section 31, page 15, lines 20-26: &amend as follows: "The

board shall make its best effort o make its order upon an appli-

cation for a position which cannot be held pending licensure or
approval by the commissicrn no* 7“orgexr “ha~ 2 moniis of+erxr the

application and sup,oriing:da Z2 lttcgd = v th “he

board. If denial of an application is recommended, the board
shall prepare and file Wwith ssion-itswritien . Yeasons

upon which the order is based."

Section 56, page 33, lines 22-31: Amend as follows: "The

holder of a state gaming license may, within [l year] 2 years of
cessation of business or upon specific approval by the board,

dispose of by sale in a manner approved by the board, any or all

of hié gaming devices, including slot machines, without a distrib-
utor's license. [If the disposition is at the cessation of
business, this exemption is valid for a single bulk of all gaming
devices apprﬁved.by the board.] 1In cases of bankruptcy of a

state gaming iicenseé or foreclosure of a lien by a bank or other
person holding a security interest for which gaming devices are
security in whole or in part for the lien, the board may authorize

[2 single bulk sale] disposition of the gamiﬁg devices without

requiring a distributor's license."

Section 57, page 34, line 1l: The spelling of "greately"

should be corrected.

P



O O

‘Amendment No. 9
Date: 4/13/81

GCB AMENDMENTS TO S.B. 527

Section 2, page 1, lines 6-7: Amend as follows: "Controls, is

controlled by or [engages in] 1s der Eommon contro! with

(another business Qrganizatio rave 9ire a

Section 12, page 5, 1li es 30-°° Alre € v OoxG e .. Co Aine
30, all language through line 3I 'shouli:be deleted. ! A*new periocd

should be added after "made" &n iine 3U. Subsection '3 peginning

on line 36 should be amended as follows: .
"[3.] 2. The filing of a petition for redetermination

which complies with the pfovisions of NRS 463.3883, or the filing

of a petition for judicial review does not affect the lien or stay
any action for the enforcement of the lien. If the amount due is

modified upon redetermination or judicial review, the commission

shall record a notice of the modification of the amount of the

lien.

Section 15, page 6, line 43: Amend as follows: "[It is unlawful

for any person to] No person shall operate or. maintain in ...."

Section 31, page 15, line 22: Replace "without" with "pending"

as follows: "... held [without]  pending licensure or approval

by the commission not longer than ...."




O

Section 42, page 26, lines

3-7:

be deleted.

Section 42, page 26, lines

2

@

GCB Amendment No. 9
Date: 4/13/81
Page 2

Subsection 4 on lines 3-7 should

"Slot machines for which a

or 463.375 are. exempt.from

Section 43, page 27, . s

fec

1s paic pursuant tc KRS 4(..373

+the “ecesg *e§cribed i, . +his sec+ion."

Ado Me3. To 0 g cr

"Slot machines for which a

or 463.375 are exempt from

fee

the

-

s paid pursuant to NRS 463.373

fees prescribed in this section."

9: 3. "4:.3.873 ox" as “ollows:
L



—
O WPW=3 N QW N —

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

EXHIBIT F

(REPRINTED WITH ADOPTED AMENDMENTS)
FIRST REPRINT A.B. 232
‘__—_____.__—-——-—_——"_——_*___-.__.___—w____.-—_-’____————_____

ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 232—ASSEMBLYMAN SADER
FEBRUARY 25, 1981

n——t— Yot dustr rovpena
Referred to Committee on Judiciary
SUMMARY—Clarifies age of and eliminates citizenship requirement for

directors of corporation. (BDR 7-922)

FISCAL NOTE: Effect on Local Government: No.
Effect on the State or on Industrial Insurance: No.

>

EXPLANATION—Matter in italics is new; matter in brackets [ ] is material to be omitted.

—_—___——__—_——-—'——_—ﬂ—*_—‘__—_-—_-

AN ACT relating to corporations; clarifying the required age for directors; elim-
inating the requirement that one director be a citizen of the United States; clar-
ifying the type of agent appointed by certain corporations; and providing other

matters properly relating thereto.

' The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly,
do enact as follows:

SecTioN 1. NRS 78.115 is hereby amended to read as follows:

78.115 The business of every corporation [shall] must be managed
by a board of not less than three directors or trustees, all of whom [[shall
be of full age and at least one of whom shall be a citizen of the United
States, except that, in] must be at least 18 years of age. In cases where
all the shares of the corporation are owned beneficially and of record by
[either] one or two stockholders, the number of directors may be less
than three but not less than the number of stockholders. Unless otherwise
provided in the certificate or articles of incorporation, or an amendment
thereof, [t shall not be necessary for] directors [to] need not be stock-

holders.

SEC. 2. NRS 80.010 is hereby amended to read as follows:

80.010 1. Before commencing or doing any business in this state,
every corporation organized under the laws of another state, territory, the
District of Columbia, a dependency of the United States or a foreign
country, which enters this state for the purpose of doing business therein,

shall file:

(a) In the office of the secretary of state of Nevada:

(1) A certificate of corporate existence issued by an authorized offi-
cer of the jurisdiction of its incorporation setting for the filing of docu-
ments and instruments related to the articles of incorporation, or the
governmental acts or other instrument or authority by which the corpora-

tion was created. If the certificate is in

a language other than English, a




DO b fb ok b b o fod b b ek

S DY ke

translation, together with the oath of the translator and his attestation of
its accuracy, [shall] must be attached thereto.

(2) A statement executed by an officer of the corporation, acknowl-
edged before an officer authorized by the laws of the place where the
acknowledgment is taken to take acknowledgments of deeds, setting forth:

(1) The name and address of its [registered] resident agent in this
state, who shall be a natural person residing in, or another corporation
with its principal otlice located in this state;

(11) As of a date not earlier than 6 months before the filing date,
the authorized capital stock of the corporation, the number of par value
shares and their par value, and the number of no-par-value shares, as set
forth in the articles of incorporation as last amended; and

(1I1) A general description of the purposes of the corporation.

(b) In the office of the county clerk of the county where the corpora-
tion has its principal office in Nevada, a copy of the certificate of corpo-
rate existence certified by the secretary of state.

2. 'The secretary of state shall not file the documents required by sub-
section 1 for any foreign corporation whose¢ name is the same as, or
deceptively similar to, the name of any corporation formed or incorpo-
rated in this state or any other foreign corporation authorized to transact
business within this state or a name reserved for the use of any proposed
corporation, unless the written acknowledged consent of that other cor-
poration or person for whom the name is reserved to the adoption of the
name is filed with the documents.

@




